Illinois State University

ISU ReD: Research and eData

Academic Senate Minutes

Academic Senate

1-19-2022

Senate Meeting, January 19, 2022

Academic Senate, Illinois State University

Follow this and additional works at: https://ir.library.illinoisstate.edu/senateminutes

Recommended Citation

Academic Senate, Illinois State University, "Senate Meeting, January 19, 2022" (2022). *Academic Senate Minutes*. 1290.

https://ir.library.illinoisstate.edu/senateminutes/1290

This Article is brought to you for free and open access by the Academic Senate at ISU ReD: Research and eData. It has been accepted for inclusion in Academic Senate Minutes by an authorized administrator of ISU ReD: Research and eData. For more information, please contact ISUReD@ilstu.edu.

Academic Senate Meeting Minutes Wednesday, January 19, 2022 Approved

Call to Order

Academic Senate chairperson Martha Callison Horst called the meeting to order.

Roll Call

Academic Senate secretary Dimitrios Nikolaou called the roll and declared a quorum.

Senator Horst: This meeting is being held electronically. President Kinzy has deemed that in person meetings conducted by the Academic Senate are not practical during the time of online teaching and learning. Therefore, from January 10 thru January 21 meetings of the Senate and/or it's committees that are subject to the Open Meetings Act should be held via electronic means. In addition to holding this meeting over Zoom, we are also broadcasting this meeting via YouTube for the benefit of the public.

Tonight, when a member of the body wishes to speak, please indicate that by using the raise hand function through the participant's function. If you do not see that available to you, an alternate way to indicate that you wish to speak is by clicking the yes/no buttons.

We will be conducting all votes via roll call this evening.

Approval of the Academic Senate minutes of 12/08/21

Motion by Senator Nikolaou, seconded by Senator Smudde, to approve the minutes. The motion was approved, with abstentions.

Chairperson's Remarks

Senator Horst: I will keep my comments brief so that we can get through our agenda in good time, despite the Zoom format this evening.

I want to thank President Kinzy for her decision to allow us to meet electronically this evening. One thing that makes Illinois State University's shared governance special is the substantial integration of students at all levels of our decision making. With a third of our Senate membership being students, I was uncomfortable asking for a face-to-face meeting given that the President has instituted a two-week period of hybrid learning. As we navigate yet another uncertain period due to COVID, I want to thank everyone this evening for their patience and perseverance.

This evening, in addition to Administrator Remarks, we will vote on some important curricular items, Financial Aid Distribution policy, and the Leave of Absence policy proposed revisions, which includes creating a new separate Military Service Leave of Absence policy. Later, I hope that we can have engaging conversations regarding the Tuition and Fee Waivers policy and the Skateboarding Activities policy. As I stated at the beginning of the meeting, please indicate if you wish to speak this evening by using the

raise hand button through the participant's function. I will do my best to keep a look out for this, although sometimes the visual of the raised hand is difficult to see.

Faculty Caucus members, we will be having a meeting after this to elect members to be forwarded to the Provost for two Assistant Vice President positions, plus elect faculty to serve on several external committees. In addition, we will wrap up our ASPT discussion with a presentation of the ASPT Appendix I calendar. So, please stick around.

I wish to conclude these remarks by welcoming back Senator Lucey of the School of Teaching and Learning, and Senator Holland from the Department of Physics. I look forward to seeing both of you gentlemen in person in Old Main in future meeting.

Student Body President's Remarks

Senator Villalobos: Some very quick SGA updates before some remarks. A resolution that requested funding for winter care packages to distribute to students was passed. The first reading was given to a bill that would establish a share shop to provide easy access for students to clothing at no cost from community donations. I strongly urge the student government to pass this bill and I look forward to signing it.

Congratulations to all of our athletics teams but especially strong congratulations to our men's basketball team on their amazing come from behind rivalry victory against Bradley. I was there. It was fantastic. I know all the students in attendance thoroughly enjoyed the win.

Now, just some remarks to continue. Monday, January 24. Monday is the day that over these past weeks thousands of this University have been looking forward to. Monday is the day when students will be back where they belong in the classroom. The scheduled return to in person instruction is of course received with joy by the vast majority of our students. This return is a practical, data driven decision supported by many. But more importantly I must say it is the correct decision. Time and time again, science has shown us all that the classroom is one of the safest places to be. However, this pandemic has most certainly also proven that nobody has all the answers. And I must also say that all debate and opinions are most certainly welcome. But my executive administration joins many of our students and respectfully but firmly disagree with efforts to seek a reversal and to undermine this decision as being unsafe, while also avoiding the inclusion of data that supports reopening.

Since August, our amazing Health Services and testing workers have received nearly 62,000 tests, and of those 62,000 just roughly 1,500 were positive cases, which is 2.5%. Many scientists, including some at the finest academic and research institutions believe that we are reaching the peak of the Omicron variant. Perhaps most importantly though, extensive research has shown that students learn better when they receive in person instruction.

We maintain strong vaccination numbers across the board, though I most certainly recognize that there can be improvement among students, and that is why I urge my fellow students, again, who have not been vaccinated to strongly consider this option. And to

consult our trained professionals at Health Services to help them make their own personal health decision.

To conclude, we have the tools at our disposal for this institution that we all serve here, to be able to operate at it's best and in the manner that it's designed to. Students and faculty alike, let us come together around our mutual love for scholarship and continue to embrace our motto as we have; Gladly We Learn and Teach. Let us show respect and understanding to everyone, and strive to have a safe, fun, and productive semester for all Redbirds.

Administrators' Remarks

• President Terri Goss Kinzy

President Kinzy: I want to start by adding my thanks to the ability of this institution and all of its members to respond in a positive way when we made the decision, far in advance, once the semester ended, to move to remote learning, with exceptions for in person (which were granted), in order to anticipate what was going to happen with COVID-19 at the beginning of the year.

I'm pleased to say that at a meeting this week with the other University President and Chancellors, we were informed by the University of Illinois—who has done a fantastic job of not only creating the SHEILD test but of also monitoring the COVID situation—that in fact, the peak for COVID-19 in the State of Illinois actually occurred on January 8, which was much earlier than anticipated. With an anticipated half-life (the time it takes to reach half of the peak, anticipated to be less than 14 days) as we hoped and anticipated for it in our planning, we missed the peak of COVID cases in our area, and by the time we are coming back to class we will be well on the way down, based on all the best modeling and data available. We all got here together, we will all move forward together, and we look forward to seeing our community back on campus on Monday.

It's important that we always monitor what we're doing, and I'm pleased to say that our leadership of the COVID Steering Team has directly spoken with our local hospitals who are fully in support of our decision to return. In fact, they're so pleased that we offered testing not only to our community of faculty, staff, and students but to dependents which is critically important for making sure that our emergency rooms are not used for testing. In addition, our community does not cause a serious problem for what we call morbidity or mortality in terms of COVID-19, particularly with the characteristics of the new Omicron variant. Therefore, they are in full support of our decision, as is our local community.

With that said, we remain vigilant in everything that we do, and made the decision early on when inklings of recommendations were coming from the CDC to procure KN95 masks for the University community. There will be two masks available for each person: faculty, students, and staff. I'm pleased to say, and you can see it on twitter where Senator Johnson is modeling his mask, but they have already gone out in campus mail to all of our full-time employees. They're already being distributed in our residence halls. And they are available at five locations for all students that live off-campus. In the Bone Student Center: Student Involvement Center, Welcome Desk, and Printing Services Office. As well as our

Multicultural Center and Milner Library. I really want to call out, the Illinois Board of Higher Education who worked with the state, who provided half of those masks to us from the emergency stock from the State of Illinois.

Speaking of the Illinois Board of Higher Education, it's really important to talk about what's happening now in government as related to the funding from the State of Illinois for Illinois State University. We talk about this frequently at this meeting and about our need to assure that there is fair funding in the State of Illinois for higher education and for Illinois State University. Illinois Board of Higher Education proposed and approved a recommendation of a 5% increase in funding for higher education in the State of Illinois. Unlike other years, however, this is not an across-the-board increase, and it's pegged to the new Illinois Board of Higher Education's strategic plan which has an eye in equity in everything that they do. Therefore, the distribution is based more on the number of power recipients at a University and less on history. For Illinois State University that means our increase would be 7%, if, and I do say if, this was to be enacted by the legislature and approved by the Governor. But suffice it to say, it's good to know that for the first time our number will be over \$4,000 per student to \$4,200. Sadly, we still rank far behind other institutions, but I think we can all agree that an equity lense is an important lense for the state to put in funding for universities.

And we have a chance to tell our story. We will speak before the House Higher Ed Appropriation Hearing Committee on February 24th at 8:00a.m., that will be a virtual presentation, which you can watch. And to the Senate Higher Ed Appropriation Hearing Committee on March 16 at 10:00a.m., again virtually. You have the opportunity as members of our community to send comment on both of those days related to the presentations. I assure you that myself and our team will tell the great story of Illinois State University and why an investment in Illinois State University is an investment in some of the very best people you will ever meet, and a great investment in the State of Illinois.

Senator Samuel: I have a two-part question. I was wondering if we know how many students are already back on campus, or back in the area? And then based off that answer, are we expecting any kind of a small surg over the next week in our COVID cases?

President Kinzy: That is an excellent question. I don't have the data myself, but we know that about 50% of the testing that we've been doing has been students. And we know that 31% of our students are back in the residence halls. We don't know how many are off campus, but what we do know is there has been a lot of student testing happening on campus, which is good. It is quite possible that there will be a small uptick as people come from different places, particularly because we know that our student vaccination rate is close to 80%, it's 90% in the dorms, but our faculty/staff rate is 97%. So, the lower your vaccination rate the more likely you are to test positive. However, we have ample testing available, we will be able to catch that. But our community has been coming back sort of in waves and lots of students are working on campus. So, I think that has really helped us to

sort of meter into the campus. That's been extremely helpful. I hope I answered your question. You're shaking your head, yes. Okay.

Senator Phares: Thank you so much for your remarks, President Kinzy. I'd say the main question I've been getting from a lot of my constituents, and it's usually in the idea of a fear of the uncertainty, that we really have and this kind of surprise announcement that we had to go online for two weeks is, what are our goal posts as a University that we consider to be successes when it comes to COVID? And how can we as a community understand when we might go back online or when we'll be able to be fully back to normal? Like what are our goal posts here, because it's really frustrating especially from a student perspective to not have any idea.

President Kinzy: So, Senator Phares, I want to tell you that one of the reasons that we chose to make a decision very early about the first two weeks being remote is because of the uncertainty. And I remember coming to an Academic Senate meeting where I had just gotten a phone call from the Deputy Governor for Education telling me that the next morning that the Governor was announcing vaccinate or test at all public universities in the State of Illinois. We had already done that. But at that Senate meeting I was asked by one of our Student Senators—and I apologize I can't remember who it was—could we please give at least two weeks' notice before we did anything. So, part of the reason I would say that our announcement about going to online for the first two weeks shouldn't be called a surprise is because there are other universities—that I shall not name—that made that decision with four- or five-days' notice to their students and faculty. So, we actually made the decision early because we respect the fact that people want more time.

The goal posts moving is one of the challenges that we all face with COVID-19. I think the most important thing to remember is we're monitoring this on a daily basis. I wish we weren't. It's been almost 2 years, but the reality is that we are trying to always anticipate what will come next. We made a decision to go online specifically for the purpose of avoiding a major peak at the beginning, avoiding major absenteeism by students, faulty, and staff, to separate ourselves from the holidays, and to make sure that when we were ready, we were able to come back. And that is what we will do on Monday. We use a holistic way of looking at what we're looking at. We used a prevention mode for this. I'm going to say, I'm happy with how it turned out because we did, using the science, anticipate the peak, and we're coming back as this is coming down. Our COVID-19 testing withstood a huge amount of entry testing. We still are getting our results at an incredibly speedy time. I'm sure you have all heard of people that have waited seven days for a test result. So, I think we've pressure tested our system and we're ready to go. We all look forward to a time when we don't have to do that, but I think by sticking with our masking policy, sticking with our testing policy, and encouraging vaccination—we have three clinics going on this week for boosters or vaccinations—we're going to stay the course that keeps us in place. But I say that our pivot was relatively small compared to other universities, and I'm hoping that we're always give as much notice as possible. But our intension is that we are back on

Monday. That has been our goal from day one, and I think we've been successful with the data that we've seen.

Senator Blum: Do we have data on how many faculty, staff, students that have received the booster shot?

President Kinzy: We have just started requesting that information after the first of the year, so that is going into our system. I know that when we got back, when we first made the request, 3,000 went in. It just turns out that in our system it's a little bit more difficult to track from a compliance perspective of when people are due. But we'll probably have a better idea on that once we get everybody back, because we've really been focused on collecting the data from our students that are testing before return. But I think that we should be able to get that data for you for the next meeting. If we can get it earlier, I can ask Senator Horst to send it around.

Senator Horst: Certainly.

President Kinzy: But we're certainly encouraging it. So, thank you for bringing it up.

• Provost Aondover Tarhule

Provost Tarhule: I want to say Happy New Year, even though we are almost three weeks into the new year. I haven't seen you all, so Happy New Year. And I'll be delighted to be back in person. I've got several announcements, but I'll try to go through them very quickly.

Beginning with some good news, our application numbers and admits for fall semester are looking really good. Really good. We're way higher than we were at this point in 2020, although we're trailing slightly behind where we were in 2019. These numbers do come with a caveat. This is the first year that ISU is running the common app. So, it's not a surprise that we're getting as many applications with those admits as we are getting. We do have some evidence from some other institutions that a common app tends to increase your application pool but not necessarily your yield pool. So, we need to do a lot more work on the back end to convert those applications to yield numbers. But we'll take good news wherever we find it, and for now the good news is applications are substantially up, and that's very encouraging.

We are also going to be interviewing over the next two weeks, virtually, 650 outstanding students for the Presidential University Scholarships. These are the most prestigious scholarships that we award. I think we are going to award about 150, I believe. We are super excited and wish we could award more.

In other news, the Registrar is retiring. Jess Ray who has served as the University Registrar for many years is going to retire effective January 31 of this year. So, I'm pleased to announce that Stacy Ramsey is going to be stepping into an interim role for that position of Registrar until we are able to fill it permanently. If you don't know Stacy, she's been with the University for almost 28 years. She has an outstanding positive attitude and really

collaborative. She works in my office, so I can tell you, you are really going to enjoy her, and we know Stacy is up to the challenge. So, super exciting.

I reported in my communications last meeting that Engineering initiative continues to be reviewed by IBHE. A large team of us met with IBHE last week, and we're still really hoping the Board of Trustees of IBHE—those meetings are only infrequently, their next meeting is going to be in March—so our hope is that we get on the agenda. We're not at all certain whether our proposal will be on that agenda. If we don't make it in March, maybe the next earliest they can get us on will be in June. But the important thing is that IBHE continues to review the proposal. They continue to send us questions and requests for updates, and we continue to work with them very productively and very constructively providing all the information they want. I know that this may feel a little bit long, and it is given that we submitted a proposal in July of last year, but this is no surprise at all. I can tell you that in many other places, certain where President Kinzy and myself have come from, it took at least two years, or close to two years, to get just a regular program off the ground. So, here we're asking to start a whole new college. So, I know we've been waiting for six to nine months. It feels long but it's not unusual. The important thing is we're working very productively and constructively with IBHE.

A few other updates. We have interviewed two candidates for the position of Dean of Arts and Science. The third candidate arrived this evening and will be on campus for the next two days. I urge all who can to participate in that interview.

We have also advertised the position for the College of Education in multiple places. That advertisement is going to be out until the end of this month. By January 31, so, we expect to hopefully be looking at some outstanding candidates for that position.

Two other positions, as you heard chairperson Horst talk about with respect to the agenda, for the Faculty Caucus, today the Assistant Vice President for Academic Administration and Assistant Vice President for Student Success, as soon as I get your nominations, hopefully by tonight, we will be finalizing those positions and advertising them.

Lat year, I talked several times about COACHE survey that will be going out his February. This is the survey that helps us to determine job satisfaction amongst our faculty. So, beginning next month you will be getting an invitation to fill out that survey. I encourage you strongly to fill this out. This will give us a very good information, I think, about how we're doing. Not just how we're doing but we have an opportunity to benchmark ourselves against a number of other institutions in terms of how well we're serving our students. So, the more of you, faculty, that participate in that, the more robust the information we're going to get will be.

Finally, as you've heard the discussions about COVID, faculty and staff participation in vaccination is truly outstanding 97%. We would like to see 100% of course but 97% is truly amazing. Even so, as we get ready to be back in person on Monday, let me encourage everyone who is not vaccinated already, or who has had a close contact even if you are

vaccinated please test this week if possible, before we get back in person. As you can imagine, it wouldn't make much sense and certainly complicate matters if you come back in person and start teaching and then realize, oops, I tested positive, and you've just exposed a lot of students to the virus. So, if you can, please, I strongly encourage all faculty and students to get tested this week before we start interacting with people in person and masks again beginning on Monday. Thank you so much.

Senator Horst: I must say that the test was a lot simpler than I thought it was. It was done very quickly. Are there any questions for Provost Tarhule?

Senator Villalobos: I'm certainly very encouraged by those admin application numbers that you talked about, Provost. Is there any way based off those numbers that the University could anticipate whether or not it will stay above the 20,000 total student threshold? and would that be your goal, remaining above that threshold?

Provost Tarhule: Absolutely. I think that 20,000 is a kind of physiological number for us. There is nothing magical about it. But we've stayed above 20,000 so long that I, quite frankly, really would hate to be the Provost when we go under the 20,000. So, not just for me personally but as a university I would really prefer that we don't go under 20,000. Now, I don't know if we can predict a year, like I said, all of our models are complicated this year by the fact that we've gone through this common app. But I am working very hard with department chairs to make sure that if we have an opportunity to bring in more students that we don't close programs, that we continue to bring in students. I think some of the chairs in here will admit that in cases where I know what it would take to keep our programs open, I'm being very forthcoming with resources to make sure that we admit and keep as many students as we can. So, I can't give you a predicted number in terms of how we can convert what we expect to convert, partly because of the confounding factors that I mentioned. But yes, I would absolutely like us to be above 20,000. I would actually like us to be above 21,000 but that's for another day.

Vice President of Student Affairs Levester Johnson

Senator Johnson: I want to wish everyone a Happy New Year as well, and welcome everyone back to campus. I have two quick announcements from a programmatic perspective. Again, I think we've done the right things with our two weeks that we transition back into campus. That has been extremely successful. We are forging forward with our programmatic efforts and are very excited and optimistic about the programs being offered moving forward.

From the Center for Civic Engagement, I wanted to let you all know that space is still available on our Alternative Spring Break (ASB) service trip to Tennessee. We'll be working with Living Lands and Waters to clean up portions of the Mississippi River. Join us to experience the Alternative Break magic, meet other amazing students, and make a difference for our environment! I actually went on that trip my second year here at ISU and

it's a wonderful opportunity to engage, give back to the environment, and give back to society. I encourage you all to participate.

There are also spots available for our summer trip to Kenya with Living Positive Kenya.

For any of these Alternative Break trips, we're still looking for advisors for those trips. Those could be either Graduate Assistant or faculty/staff at ISU. You don't have to pay a dime to participate, so we encourage you to participate and volunteer to serve our students and campus community in this capacity where you can make connections with students from all across the university. I encourage you all to consider that.

Career Services is excited to share that the Alumni Mentoring Network is now available for undergraduate and graduate students. The Alumni Mentor Network is a tool that allows students to self-select an alum to serve as their mentor. Students choose from the list of alumni who volunteer based on their preference and career goals. Using the Alumni Mentor Network is easy. Located within Hire-A-Redbird, students simply click on the "Resources," then "Pathway," and complete the step-by-step instructions. Once finished with the steps, students work with the mentor to coordinate their connection. I encourage our students to participate in that program.

• Vice President of Finance and Planning Dan Stephens

Senator Stephens: I have one important item to share and then I'll pass the time on to Janice Bonneville. She's got an important update on FMLA matters. I have an update on the building stairs project that currently exists at the Stevenson building. As you may recall, back in November past Senate chairperson Dr. Susan Kalter shared with me a concern about the stairs at the Stevenson building as you exit toward the School Street garage. They were beginning to show some very serious safety concerns as students exited the building. I'm happy to report that the repair work began just before the break, December 13, and was actually finished by the end of that week. The contractor was able to make the repairs to the stairs and then we asked him to apply some additional preventative measures to make sure that this new element of repair lasted at least for several years. Given the salt and stuff we have to use, this type of work unfortunately gets denigrated fairly quickly. So, the stairs should be fully operational now. The facilities team is now beginning to get quotes to repair the concrete pillars that have also been damaged through the years due to weather exposure. We will completely replace the concrete panels that encapsulate the actual support pillars. We'll begin the work on this final phase once the weather warms to a sufficient temperature that ensures that the concrete can effectively dry. We're hoping to start this work in late March or early April and this effort should only take a few weeks to complete. So, thank you, Dr. Kalter, for bringing this matter to my attention. That's all I have for this evening.

• Update from Janice Bonneville regarding <u>3.1.12 Federal Family and Medical Leave</u>

AVP Bonneville: Just a brief update. I shared this information with the shared governance groups earlier this year just to make the Senate aware that on January 1 the State of Illinois changed the law for FMLA to reduce the number of hours an employee has to work from

the current standard of 1,250 hours in a 12-month period to 1,000 hours in a 12-month period. This changes the state law, it doesn't change the federal law. But because the state law gives a greater benefit than the federal law it does apply to us. What this means is that for a number of employees, particularly those employees that work less than a 12-month contract. So, for example, employees in Event Management, Dining, and Hospitality who maybe are not working over the summer, NTTs, some GAs depending on their contract, would have a better opportunity for FMLA leave eligibility because the threshold has been reduced from 1,250 hours to 1,000 hours. The change has already been made. It is literally that change in the policy from 1,250 to 1,000, and the policy was posted on the website right at the start of the year.

Consent Agenda: (All items under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine in nature and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items.)

- *Mennonite College of Nursing:* <u>Doctor of Philosophy in Nursing:</u> <u>BSN to PhD Sequence</u>
- *Mennonite College of Nursing:* <u>Doctor of Philosophy in Nursing: Post Master's Sequence</u>
- 10.21.21.18 Policy 3.2.17 Creation of Academic Policy Current Copy
- 10.19.21.14 POLICY RENUMBER Policy 10.2 revised from 3.2.17 Creation of Academic Policy Mark Up
- 10.21.21.19 POLICY RENUMBER Policy 10.2 Creation of Academic Policy CLEAN COPY

Motion by Senator Nikolaou, seconded by Senator Smudde, to approve the Consent Agenda items. The motion was unanimously approved.

Action Item:

From Academic Affairs Committee:

11.04.21.06 Policy 7.7.2 Financial Aid Distribution Current Copy

01.11.22.01 Policy 7.7.2 Financial Aid Distribution Mark Up

01.11.22.04 Policy 7.7.2 Financial Aid Distribution Clean Copy

Motion by Senator Cline, on behalf of the Academic Affairs Committee, to approve the proposed changes to policy 7.7.2 Financial Aid Distribution.

Senator Nikolaou: Just a really tiny thing. You will see that the Waivers appear that they are under scholarships, so in the clean copy you just need to move that bullet point.

Senator Horst: Another friendly amendment that we discussed is whether or not work study needs to be capitalized at various places in the document. I understand you can work that out with Bridget Curl.

Senator Cline: Yeah. I'll actually talk to Christy West about it (this is hers), just to be sure that I understand when it's a proper noun and when it's not. But we'll adjust that as needed.

The motion was unanimously approved with friendly amendments.

From Planning and Finance Committee:

09.13.18.10 Policy 3.1.11 Leave of Absence Current Copy

01.06.22.03 Policy 3.1.11 Leave of Absence Mark Up

01.06.22.02 Policy 3.1.11 Leave of Absence Clean Copy

Senator Vogel: There were two questions raised on the floor last time. One was, can an individual who is serving as an election official be considered for that leave section that was describing voting. And then the second question was can graduate students be included in the section about attending school conferences. AVP Bonneville consulted with Legal Counsel and as neither of those expansions is contemplated under their respective statutes, we would not want to apply those expansions to our policies, so we left it as you saw it last time.

I do have two friendly amendments. At the end of the policy, we were missing the normal concluding information, so I am proposing to add three lines. The first line will say Initialing Body: State of Illinois. The next line will say Contact: Human Resources Benefits Office (309-438-8311). And then the last line will say Revised on: 01/2022. So that was missing from the copy you currently have.

The second friendly amendment is on second page in the Bereavement Leave section. The paragraph that starts, "Documentation of the reason for bereavement leave may be required." That second sentence reads the calculation of bereavement time is based upon the employees standard University workday," the word employees should have an 's.

Motion by Senator Vogel, on behalf of the Planning and Finance Committee, to approve the proposed changes to policy 3.1.11 Leave of Absence as amended. The motion was unanimously approved.

From Planning and Finance Committee:

11.18.21.14 Policy 3.1.11 LoA MILITARY portion only Current Copy

11.18.21.15 Proposed NEW Policy 3.1.50 Military Service Mark Up

11.18.21.02 Proposed New Policy 3.1.50 Military Service Leave of Absence Clean Copy Motion by Senator Vogel, on behalf of the Planning and Finance Committee, to approve new policy 3.1.50 Military Service Leave of Absence. The motion was unanimously approved.

Information Items:

From Academic Affairs Committee:

09.14.21.03 Policy 7.7.8 Tuition and Fee Waivers Policy Current Policy

01.11.22.02 Policy 7.7.8 Tuition and Fee Waivers Policy Mark Up

01.11.22.03 Policy 7.7.8 Tuition and Fee Waivers Policy Clean Copy

Senator Cline: We are bringing forward 7.7.8 Tuition and Fee Waiver policy. The same audit that discovered issues with 7.7.2 discovered a few issues with the Tuition Fee and Waivers policy. Essentially, this gave us an opportunity to do some editing and updates to the different types of waivers. There were some compliance issues that were corrected. I've got Bridget Curl on this Zoom who can explain a little bit about those changes and answer any

questions that you might have about those. The one thing I would note, however, is we may have some questions concerning those mandatory waivers as they're bolded in the text, special education, teacher scholarship, etc., that terminology is fixed by those granting agencies so we are a little bit limited in how we can list them in policy. And furthermore, you'll note down further in the policy there is a listing under waiver categories that uses some language that we would object to in our University community. Those are set by the Illinois Board of Higher Education, and we have addressed through our representative to that body our concerns about some of that language. We'll see if anything changes. If not, we may follow-up in some other form. But just as an acknowledgement, those are not terms that we as an institution have selected, but those are terms that keep us in compliance with state rules.

Senator Samuel: This might fall under the things you can't change, but I had a question about the MIA/POW scholarships which is number 8 under the mandatory waivers, about the language that defines the type of children. I know we just did a policy where we reverted back.

Senator Cline: I agree with you. Unfortunately, that is one of the compliance issues. This isn't our language, nor our criteria. That's dictated by that institution so unfortunately, it's not for us to change. But I agree with you.

Senator Samuel: Okay. I just wanted to make sure.

Senator Cline: I will note that the very last sentence doesn't make a whole lot of sense. I will read allowed to you how that will be adjusted when we make some edits. There were some complications when too many editors in the room with Legal. That last paragraph will ready, "Records of student waiver programs outlined above are maintained in accordance with state statute or institutional policy identified in Illinois State University Records Management plan approved in accordance with the Illinois State Records Act, 5 ILCS 160,."

Senator Horst: Senator Cline, I was wondering if in number 4 Partial Tuition Waivers, if you could name the policy, the Educational Benefits policy, as opposed to just putting the number.

Senator Cline: I don't see any reason why not.

From Rules Committee:

12.08.21.01 Policy 5.1.8 Skateboarding Activities policy Current Copy 01.11.22.07 Policy 5.1.8 Skateboarding Activities policy Mark Up 01.11.22.06 Policy 5.1.8 Skateboarding Activities policy Clean Copy 12.08.21.04 Policy 5.1.8 Hammer and Stewart email

Senator Stewart: I'm presenting policy 5.1.8 Skateboarding Activities, and revisions to it that have been approved by Rules. Due to some incidents on campus, the Academic Senate was asked by the ISU Police to update policy 5.1.8 to make clear that skateboarding is not allowed inside buildings. We worked with Teri Hammer in Legal when making various updates, and she agrees that all of the changes in the new proposal are acceptable. Here's a

summary of the main updates to 5.1.8. First, overall, the policy has been broadened in its application so that it applies to other wheeled recreational vehicles, not just skateboards. So, those would include bicycles, roller-blades, roller-skates, etc. Two, the title of the policy has been updated accordingly to reflect the broadening of the scope. Three, a sentence has been added, clearly stating, that the use of wheeled recreational vehicles inside building is prohibited. And finally, a sentence that was focused on penalties that could be applied to students who violate this policy has been replaced, with advice from Legal, with a sentence that applies to students and staff.

Senator Nikolaou: In the very last sentence that you mentioned, Senator Stewart, I'm wondering if we should say, "...University students, faculty and staff..." so that we incorporate all categories.

Senator Stewart: I take that as an entirely friendly amendment. I actually did check with Legal about it and they have no problem with adding faculty. I think I erroneously believed that faculty counted as an honorary part of staff, and I've learned by doing some research that that's just not true. So, anyway, I take that as a friendly amendment.

Senator Smudde: I was just wondering whether or not it would still be useful to enumerate examples about wheeled recreational vehicles? I just imagine people having difficulty relating to that term and it might be through of as equipment instead of vehicles. But in any case, I was just wondering if that kind of enumeration ought to be added; a list of examples really.

Senator Stewart: That's an interesting suggestion.

Senator Smudde: In the first line or sentence.

Senator Stewart: Yeah. At the very least bicycles are given as an example. I'm open to the idea that we could add some other examples like, rollerblades or things like that. I will point out though that my sense is that legally speaking vehicle often gets a very vague definition because it isn't entirely clear. But I suppose I'm open to the idea. I guess it might depend what other senators thought about it.

Senator Horst: I'm wondering if a vehicle is a roller blade. My other question is I think I saw my nieces with these wheely sneakers. Would that be a wheeled recreation vehicle?

Senator Stewart: I honestly don't know the answer to that, but I think that that's the problem with vagueness that we're going to run into, unless we try to do a complete and exhaustive enumeration of anything. So, I have it on testimony that actually sometimes wheely sneakers are used by people in buildings in unsafe ways, my guess is that this policy probably should apply to them.

Senator Pancrazio: I just want to follow up with what Senator Smudde said, when I read the line about vehicles, I had to read it a couple different times. I think an e.g., to specify whether vehicle or device. But I said, good lord, only professors speak like this. I think it would be a nice clarification to say okay, we're talking about shoes, would be fine.

Senator Villalobos: So, it says that they all must be ridden safely by their users and they will still be allowed as an effective means of transportation. It then talks about tricks and stunts, and it says, "such tricks and stunts are prohibited on all University property." So, if someone is riding a skateboard or rollerblades and they're using them as a means of transportation to class, and on the way to class on, let's say, a sidewalk, and no one else is around and they decide to do a trick. Would they then be under your interpretation in violation of this policy and subject to whatever ISUPD does in enforcing that?

Senator Stewart: I assume that the answer is yes. That if it took place on University property that that technically is in violation of the policy. Part of that is that it's not just that tricks are dangerous, but they also can damage University property. Right. And so, I think that's part of the reason. Yes, it's partly about danger to the user and other people but it's also about damage to property.

Academic Affairs Committee: Senator Cline

Senator Cline: Just a quick update. We were happy to get 7.7.2 and 7.7.8 to the floor. Today we passed through committee a revision to the Pass/No Pass Credit/No Credit policy. And we began discussion of policy 2.1.21 which is having to do with the rules regulating student reinstatement.

Administrative Affairs and Budget Committee: Senator Smudde

Senator Smudde: The committee met tonight and had a simple agenda. The first thing we talked about was the status of the feedback surveys for the President. Invitations went out last week, Monday, and they should be open through January 28. So, we as a committee will start looking at the responses to that survey and digesting them.

We are also awaiting comment and feedback on the policy for the vice presidents feedback surveys from President Kinzy.

And then we talked about how we are going to have the AIF presentation on February 2 with Dr. Dan Elkins.

And then we are looking forward to setting a date to talk about policies 6.1.3 and 6.2.3 which are policies that we're investigating whether or not they should be revised. They're about facilities and space usage in the university, and we're looking to see whether or not there should be any changes to those policies because of COVID or for other reasons. So that's it.

Faculty Affairs Committee: Senator Nikolaou

Senator Nikolaou: The Faculty Affairs Committee met this evening and we voted on policy 3.2.8 Sabbatical Leave. So, this is going to be coming as an information item hopefully for our next meeting. Then we also approved the small changes that we got from Human Resources about a policy we voted on last semester, the one about Academic Notice of Appointments. Then we started our discussion on policy 3.4.8 Educational Leave for Administrative Professional Personnel.

Planning and Finance Committee: Senator Vogel

Senator Vogel: Our committee met this evening. We discussed changes to policy 3.1.11 that we just voted on. We elected a replacement for David Marx who is on sabbatical onto the ad hoc committee of the Faculty caucus regarding NTT/TT ratios and instructional capacity [Dan Holland]. We began discussion of policy 9.6 Student Computer Ownership. We have some more work to do on that one. We concluded our discussion of the policy 7.1.10 Fundraising, so that will hopefully come as an information item for the next meeting. And we're still continuing our work on policy 3.4.7 Employment for Teaching Purposes of Administrative Professional Personnel.

Rules Committee: Senator Stewart

Senator Stewart: Rules did meet tonight. We discussed a couple of very final changes to 5.1.8 Skateboarding Activities policy that had come up in the Executive Committee, and we approved both of those changes. Both of those changes were actually included in the version the Senate discussed tonight. We spent the rest of our time this evening discussing creation of policy 10.2.1 and so we have a bunch of feedback we'll be sending back to the originators as a result of that conversation.

Communications

None

Adjournment

Motion by Senator Swiech, seconded by Senator Villalobos, to adjourn. The motion was unanimously approved.

	Senate					
Name	Atten	Minutes	Consen	7.7.2 Financial	3.1.11	3.1.50
	dance	Approv	t	Aid	Leave of	Military
		al	Agenda	Distribution	Absence	Service
Avogo, Winfred	1	0	1	1	1	1
Biancalana, AJ	1	1	1	1	1	1
Blum, Craig	1	1	1	1	1	1
Bonnell, Angela	1	1	1	1	1	1
Chassy, Grant	1	1	1	1	1	1
Cline, Lea	1	1	1	1	1	1
DeNeve, Sarah	1	1	1	1	1	1
Deutsch, Lucky	1	1	1	1	1	1
Garrahy, Deb - EXCUSED	0	0	0	0	0	0
Harpel, Tammy	1	1	1	1	1	1
Hogue, Hannah	1	1	1	1	1	1
Holland, Dan	1	0	1	1	1	1
(rep Marx,						
David)						
Hollywood,	1	1	1	1	1	1
Mary						
Horst, Martha	1	1	1	1	1	1
Johnson,	1					
Levester *	4					
Kinzy, Terri *	1	0	4	_		
Lahiri, Somnath	1	0	1	1	1	1
Landfair,	1	1	1	1	1	1
Lawrence	1	0	1	1	1	1
Lucey, Tom	1	0	1	1	1	1
McLauchlan, Craig *	1					
McNab, Maddie	1	1	1	1	1	1
Meyers, Adena	1	1	1	1	1	1
Midha, Vishal	1	0	1	1	1	1
Miller, Chloe	1	1	1	1	1	1
Monk, Eduardo	1	0	0	0	0	0
Nahm, Kee-	1	1	1	1	1	1
Yoon			_	_	1	1
Nichols, Wade	1	1	1	1	1	1
Nikolaou,	1	1	1	1	1	1
Dimitrios						

Noel-Elkins,	1	1	1	1	1	1
Amelia	1	1	1	1	1	1
Novotny, Nancy	1	1	1	1	1	1
Otto, Stacy	1	1	1	1	1	1
Palmer, Stuart	1	1	1	1	1	1
Pancrazio, Jim	1	1	1	1	1	1
Paoni, Devin	1	1	1			
(TRUSTEE) *						
Peters, Steve	1	1	1	1	1	1
Phares, Kevin	1	1	1	1	1	1
Qaddour, Jihad	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rademaker,	1	1	1	1	1	1
Hannah						
Rardin, Nate	1	1	1	1	1	1
Restis, William	1	1	1	1	1	1
Samhan, Bahae	1	1	1	1	1	1
Samuel, Isabel	1	1	1	1	1	1
Schmeiser,	1	1	1	1	1	1
Benjamin						
Seeman, Scott	1	0	1	1	1	1
Small, Maddy	1	1	1	1	1	1
Smudde, Pete	1	1	1	1	1	1
Spranger, Avery	1	1	1	1	1	1
Stephens,	1					
Daniel *						
Stewart, Todd	1	1	1	1	1	1
Swiech, Livi	1	1	1	1	1	1
Tarhule,	1					
Aondover *	4	4	1	4	4	4
Torry, Mike	1	1	1	1	1	1
Toth, Dylan	1	1	1	0	1	1
Valentin, Rick	1	1	1	1	1	1
Villalobos,	1	1	1	1	1	1
Rodrigo	1	1	1	1	1	1
Vogel, Laura	1	1	1	1	1	1
Zosky, Diane (dean rep) *	1					
Grieshaber,	1					
Chris (chair	1					
rep) *						
VACANT - 1 CAS	0	0	0	0	0	0
SS Faculty		<u></u>	<u></u>			

VACANT - 1	0	0	0	0	0	0
Faculty						
Associate						
VACANT - 1	0	0	0	0	0	0
Student Senator						
VACANT - 1	0	0	0	0	0	0
Student Senator						
QUORUM	48	41	47	46	47	47
(VOTING) (28)						
(*=NV)						